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The Sudler Property
. North Main Street

Bridgeville, Delaware

1. General Store - believed to have been consiructed on the Lynch property in Roxana
prior to the Civil War. Barry Lynchs great grandfather- a union veteran - opened it to serve the
neighborhood. A gift from Barry Lynch, Diana Huntington, Norman Lynch and Shirley Collins.

2. & 3. Cedar log corncribs moved from Richard Calhouns grandfathers farm near Indian
River. The Asher Lingo farm was heired by Richard, his sister, Frances, and brother, Frank.

4, Privy - formerly used as a "Milk House” on the Lynch Farm at Roxana. Since we already
had a spring house which served the same purpose, (storage of perishable foods) we decided it
would make an elegant outhouse. Close in age to the Store building. Gift of the Lynch Family.

S. Smoke House - A gift of the Kenneth McDowell Family from this area. Originally used to
store and cure meats.

6. Spring House (Milk House) - The foundation was all that remained, but we rebuilt it
based on other historic buildings. The original trough allowed cool water from the adjacent well to
circulate around the eggs, milk and other foods to keep them cool and safe to eat.

7. The Ice House - This is original to the site. We reroofed it and made minor repairs. It is
built into the ground 10 feet deep and was used to store ice blocks cut from the nearby tributary
of the Nanticoke (i.e. a ditch).

8. The Sweet Potato House - Sweet potatoes cannot be stored in a root cellar because they
spoil if frozen. Therefore, a heated yoom or house was required to keep them edible. This one was
large with 2 chimneys and stoves at each end and bins were constructed to keep the potatoes
clearly designated by the grower/owner. Eight different families in the Cokesbury area used this
one. It was located across from Cokesbury Church and was originally the Arthur Messick property.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hunsberger who purchased the property gave us this building.

9. The Sudler House - The earliest part is dated 1750. We have been told Lord Calvert's
Ambassador to the local Indian tribes from the Delaware River to the Chesapeake Bay may have
been the owner of what was a very nice house for the time. During restoration we discovered the
larger part was moved in reportedly between 1820 and 1840. The corner fireplace in the original
part is unique in Western Sussex County. We added a second story addition to accommodate a
modern kitchen, powder room, master suite (on the first floor) and additional bedroom and bath
upstairs.






1793:

1808:

DR. JOHN R. SUDLER HOUSE
HABS No. DE-184 (Page 2}

Bond of Conveyance, December 5, 1793 in Deed Book A-B
#25, pages 259-260.

variiel & I1ruswen L.

U11143m Jecenn was hound o Daniel and Trusten 1 . Polk

Deed October 8, 1808, recorded on the same date in
Deed Book A-E #28, pages 82-85,

WilTiam Jessop's Administrator
to
Trusten L. Polk's & Daniel Polk's Heirs

This deed mentions the bond from the year 1793 and
says that WiTTliam Jessop died intestate before he
conveyed the lands to Daniel and Trusten Polk. Thus
all his property came under the control of his
administrator, WiTliam:Lowber. Trusten PoTlk then died
intestate in 1796 leaving his widow and five children
to survive him., Daniel Polk died in 1797 intestate
leaving his five children to survive him. WiTliam
Lowber in 1806 petitioned the Court of Common Pleas
asking permission to convey the Tand in accordance
with the Bond of Conveyance and an Act of Assembly.
This was granted on April 23, 1806, and William sold
the property for $1 to the Polk heirs. One part went
to Daniel Polk, son of Daniel. The other part went to
the five children of Trusten Polk subject to right of
dower of his widow as tenants in common. One of the
children was Sirah Polk who married Doctor John Carey.

Deed April 17, 1833 recorded on the same date in Deed
Book 43, pages 2719-221.

% Wesley Smith & Others

In accordance with the will of Doctor John Carey,

January 1832, his executors William N. Polk, Wesley
Smith  and .John Richards and his widaw .lane rarev cnald
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farmer, he also served a term in the state Tegislature. On
April 3, 1870, at the age of 73, Dr. John R. Sudler dfed at his
residence in Bridgeville.

Prepared by: James Stewart
Project Historian
Delaware Division of H1stor1ca1
and Cultural Affairs
1975

ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION

A.

General Statement:

1.

2.

Architectural character: This eighteenth-century vernacular
farmhouse has an unusual floor plan, with a torner chimney.

Condition of fabric: Good.

Description of Exterior:

1.

Over-all Dimensions: Approximately 56'-3" (six-bay front) x
18'-6", two stories. The two-story rear wing measures
approximately 18'-3" x 13'-0", and a one-story room on the :
southeast corner was a screened porch at the time of record1ng, '
but was enclosed after 1975. ‘

Foundations: Brick, with concrete block under the north'end}
Walls: Frame walls with wood shingles, weathered naturally.

Structural system, framing: Wood framing walls and second-floor.
roof rafters.

Porches: There is a covered porch on the east (rear) facade :
with a brick floor, gable roof, scalloped frieze, and two turned
wood posts each side of the porch, one at the front and one at
the rear. There is a wide wood board rail each side between the
columns. The wood plank ceiling is arched and the gable end has
horizontal planks. There is one brick step.

There is a gabled hood over a brick stoop on the north door of
the rear wing, with scalloped frieze and shingled gable end.

There is a Targe brick stoop; with a rowlock edge course around
the perimeter, at the ma1n entrance on the west. It is
uncovered.

There is a concrete block bulkhead with wood doors on the east -
side of the house, north of the rear porch, 1ead1ng to a craw]
space. o :
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Chimneys: The exterior chimney on the south end has shoulders
between the first-floor windows. It appears to have been
rebuilt because the bricks are in stretcher bond. The interior
chimney on the north end is exposed and stuccoed at the
first-fToor level, on the exterior. There is a brick chimney
near the center of the house towards the rear and a projecting
plastered chimney on the southeast at the gable of the rear wing.

Openings:

a. Doorways and doors: The entrance near the center on the
west facade is in the Palladian style, with four-light
sidelights and a fanlight above the door only. The door
has six panels. The two doors on the rear are also paneled.

b. Windows and shutters: The first-floor windows have
nine-over-six-light single-hung sashes and the second-floor
windows have six-over-six-Tight single-hung sashes. There

_are Touvered shutters on the north and east windows, second
floor, and east and south, first floor. The window
surround and shutters are painted green.

Roof: .

a. Shape: Gable roofs over the main house, rear wing, and
one-story wing are covered with asphalt shingles. A
hip-roof addition is on the rear of the wing and is also
covered with asphalt shingles.

b. Cornice, eaves: Boxed cornices have metal gutters with
downspouts. There is a simple rake board.

C. Description of Interior:

]'

Floor plans:

a. First Floor: The main entrance Teads to a stair hall.
There is one room north of the stair hall and twe rooms
south. There are fireplaces in the far end walls and in
the northeast corner of the middle room. East of the south
room in an addition.

b, Second floor: The second-floor rooms are in the same

' Tocation as the rooms on the first floor, except the stair
hall is wider and the north room smaller. Only the north
bedroom has a fireplace. There is a bathroom in the west
part of the stair hall,

c. Attic: The unfinished attic has a wood floor.
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Stairways: The main stairway is an open-well, open-string
stair, with one Tanding. There {s a decorative wood scroll trim
on the string at each tread and wood paneling enclosing the area
under the stairway. There is a very simple wood handrail and
small square balusters.

The rear stair is open-well, closed-string, open-rise with
simple wood handrail and one landing.

The enclosed stairway to the attic is a winder with vertical
wood paneling enclosing a small closet underneath.

Floorings: There is varnished wide plank flooring on all
floors. Linoleum covers the rear stair hall, first and second
floors, and utility room. Asphalt tile covers the rear bath,
second floor. , :

Wall and ceiling finish: Walls and ceilings are painted
plaster. There is a chair rail in the center hall, first and
second floors, with the wainscot panel below painted gold. In
the parlor and dining room are simple cornice moldings. The
center bedroom has a chair rafil. The south bedroom has a small
plaster garland cornice. The ceilings in the north and center
bedrooms have exposed wood beams with cove moldings at the
ceiling and frieze boards around the room. The beams have
quirked edges. In the second-floor center hall and bathroom are
exposed beams and wood cejlings.

Doorways and doors: Wooden doors with raised panels on both
sides are in the parlor and south bedroom. Other doors have
raised panels one side. There are some vertical plank doors on
the second floor. AT1 door openings are Tow and have wood
surrounds. In the parlor and stair hall, surrounds have plinth
blocks with an ogee curve. The dining room door trim has simple
small plinth blocks. There is a wide paneled jamb between
dining room and center hall.

Fireplaces: The fireplace in the parlor is brick with a rowlock
arch opening. There is a large wood surround and mantel. The
brick hearth is edged with a rowlock and sloped wood flooring,
mitred at corners. Cupboards on each side of the fireplace have
round-arched openings and paneled wood doors beTow.

The dining room fireplace is brick with a rowlock arch opening,
brick hearth and heavy wood surround and mantel. Surround has
pilaster effect on sides. s

The fireplace in the kitchen is brick with a rowlock-arched
opening, wood surround with pilaster effect on sides and wood
mantel. The wide wood board around the brick hearth is mitred
on the corners. :
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The simple plaster fireplace, painted slate gray, in the north
bedroom has a brick hearth, wood surround and mantel.

Hardware: There are porcelain knobs, brass knobs and wrought
thumb Tatches on doors. On the door to the dining room are
wrought-iron strap hinges. The doorbell is a porcelain knob on
the outside connected through a pulley to a bell mounted on the
interior trim.

Mechanical Equipment:
a. Heating: Heating is hot water baseboard heat.

b. Plumbing: Modern plumbing fixtures except a roll rim
bathtub with claw feet and a porcelain enamel pedestal
Tavatory in the front bathroom.

¢. Electricity: A wall Tlight is in each bedroom and a hanging
chandelier is in the dining room, all reproductions. A
hanging candTe holder with glass chimney is in the center
hall.

General setting and orientation: The house faces west on a
Targe site about 30 yards east of the street. Cultivated Tand
surrounds the house on three sides. A few small houses are
across the street. There is a flagpole to the southwest in the
front yard. The house sits on the north edge of a small town on
the business route to the city. A small creek is approximately
100 yards to the south of the house.

Landscape: Many Targe trees surround the Targe site. The
grassy lawn slopes to the creek. A boxwood-Tined gravel walk
Teads from the street to the main entrance. A gravel drive
Teads up from the street to the rear and forms a large circle.
A gravel walk Teads from the drive to the front entrance and a
brick walk Teads from the drive to the rear entrance. A gravel
walk Teads from the circle to the rear entrance. Large boxwood
surround a brick terrace on the southeast of the house,
approximately 50 feet from the house.

Qutbuildings: There is a brick ice house approximately 25 yards
to the south. [t has a brick basketweave floor and a gable
roof, which has been replaced. The earth is mounded up around
the exterior walls, which are corbelled on the interior. There
is a garage and storage shed northeast of the house. It has
wood shingle siding, gable roof with asphalt shingles and doubTe



DR. JOHN R. SUDLER HOUSE
HABS No. DE-1B4 (Page 8)

hinged wood doors. The storage shed has two clerestory windows
on a pent roof with a pent roof open shed on the south.
Outbuildings are in good condition.

Prepared by: John P. White
Project Supervisor
Historic American Buildings Survey
August 1975

PART II1. SOURCES OF INFORMATION

A. Primary and Unpublished Sources:
Deed Books: Sussex County Court House, Georgetown, Delaware;
Dorchester County Court House, Centerville, Maryland; Maryland
Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland.
Survey Books: Sussex County Court House.
Orphans Court Books: Sussex County Court House.
Assessment Books: Sussex County Court House.

Kent County Mutual Insurance Company records: Delaware
Archives, Hall of Records, Dover, Delaware.

B. Secondary Sources:

Beers, D. G. Atlas of the State of Delaware. Philadelphia:
Pomeroy and Beers, 186B.

Scharf, J. Thomas. History of Delaware 1609F18B8. 2 vols.
Philadelphia: L. J. Richards and Company, IBBB.

PART IV. PROJECT INFORMATION

This project was undertaken by the Historic American Buildings Survey in
cooperation with the Division of Historical and Cultural Affairs, State of ;
Delaware. Under the direction of John Poppeliers, Chief of HABS, the project
was completed during the summer of 1975 at the Historic American Buildings
Survey Field Office, Dover, Delaware by John P. White (Assistant Professor,
Texas Tech University), Project Supervisor; James Stewart (University of -
Delaware), Sally Schwartz (Harvard University), Project Historian; Charles B."
Tonetti (Syracuse University), Architect; Student Assistant Architects, Scott
Barnard (University of Pennsylvania), Frederick K. Read (University of Notre
Dame), and Mark T. Wellen (Texas Tech University). The written data were .
edited by Alison K. Hoagland, Historian, in the HABS office in January 1983,
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OESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Sudler House is a 51x-bay, two-story cypress-shingle,
sheathed dwelling house situated on the northern bank of Bridge
Branch, in North West Fork Hundred. The original three-bay
section, erected about 1750, was enlarged during the Federal
period.

/ .

In keeping with the local building tradition, the house is only
one room deep but, unlike any other reszdence in the lmmedlate
area. it has an unusual floor plan. S .

3 : ' "* .. The plan
of this particular house is unlque “for the Hundré&d, because
it originally included one exterior end chimney and an interion
corner chimney. The Federal period addition, which is compose
of a stairhall and parlor, has an interior center end chimney
.with an exposed exterior base.

The exterior of this.dwelling features a simple box cornice
with molded trim and louvered blinds. An eliptical fanlight,
flanked by sidelights, marks the Federal .period entrance.
Abutting the structure at the rear is a small, modern ell.

The simple elegance of the Sudler House is suggested by its
fine interior decorative features. The unusual curved plinth
blocks at the base of the door jambs are only found occasionall
in Sussex's finest period houses.

"The'gracefully'designed staircase with sgquare balusters has an
Aunusual double . carved bracket trim and panelled base, rarely
- found in North" West Fork Hundred.

Unique for the area, however, is the delicately carved wooden
swag cornice which adorns tlie walls of a second story bedroom.

The original pine mantels, which were once marbelized, have
flat molded trim,panelled friezes and pilasters.

The remains of an ice house, near the bank of Bridge Branch, -
offers architectural evidence for one of the original out-

" buildings. The exceptionally large structure is the only
brick ice house which has been located in -the Hundred.

As a significant example of Sussex County's vernacular archi{
tecture, the Sudler House incorporates architectural '
lnfluences from both the Maryland and Virginia provinces.

Y
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STATEMENT OF SiGNIFICANCE

The Sudler House is architecturally significant, for it is the
only frame dwelling in North West Fork Hundred known to contain
a corner end chimney. Its conservative design, proportions

and elegant interior enable the Sudler House to be considered
an excellent example of local vernacular architecture.

It is also the oldest known domestic structure in the town of
Bridgeville, which was recognized as the "heart of the greatest
fruit and berry growing section of the Peninsula" during the
nineteenth-century.

The original hall and parlor section of the Sudler House was
erected about 1750 on a tract of land called Attowattocoquin,
which was originally part of Dorchester County, Maryland.

This tract was patt of ten thousand acres granted to Cacilius
Stevens, of London, on September 22, 1658,  In 1684, Cacilius'
son, Colonel William Stevens, assigned 1200 acres of the
original Attowattocogquin. tract to Christopher Nutter of
Somerset County, Maryland. Eventually, the Nutter family
became one of the largest land holding families in the region.

By 1776, the boundary line between the province of Maryland
and the three lower counties 6én the Delaware had been firmly
established, John Jessop, a planter of the county, petitioned
Governor John Penn for a resurvey of his part of the Atto-
wattocoquin tract at the head of the Nanticoke River on March 6|,
1776. .He received a grant of confirmation for the tract,
together with the vacant land contiguous thereto, for which he
agreed to pay the rate of five pound sterling for every hundred
acres with interest and the yearly quit rent of one penny
sterling per acre. The resurvey was returned to the secretary'f
office on July 2, 1776. It began at a part of the Attowatto-
coquin tract known as Jessop's Meadow, on the north side of
Bridge Branch and included Jessop's dwelling house (now known
as the Sudler House). By 1779, John Jessop and his wife
Eliner (Brown) had accumulated more than six hundred acres of
land in North West Fork Hundred and, by 1780, had become one
of the principal wheat growers of the area.
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(Significance: page 2)

Dr. John R. , for whom the house was later named,
acquired” the house and property in 1833. He was born in
1797 in the town of Milford, where his father was a
practdéing physician. Having received his medical training
from the University of Pennsylvania, John R. took up
residence in Bridgeville. Here he established an extensive
practice of medicine, which he maintained for fifty years.
Like the previous owners of the property, Dr. Sudler also
engaged in agricultural pursuits and won recognition as a
pioneer in the raising of peaches and strawberries. Besides
his active career as a physician and farmer, he also served
a one-year term in the state legislature. On April 3, 1870,
at the age of 73, Dr. John R. Sudler died at his residence
in Bridgeville. From 1833 until 1971, a period of 138 years,
Dr. John R. Sudler and his descendants continued to own and
maintain the Sudler House as a private dwelling.
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